

1958 National Child Development Study user guide

# Area data

# **Peter Shepherd**

December 2012





# 1958 National Child Development Study Area data

**By Peter Shepherd** 

First published in November 2012 by the Centre for Longitudinal Studies Institute of Education, University of London 20 Bedford Way London WC1H 0AL www.cls.ioe.ac.uk

© Centre for Longitudinal Studies

ISBN 978-1-906929-52-7

The Centre for Longitudinal Studies (CLS) is an Economic and Social Research Council (ESRC) resource centre based at the Institution of Education (IOE), University of London. It provides support and facilities for those using the three internationally-renowned birth cohort studies: the 1958 National Child Development Study, the 1970 British Cohort Study and the Millennium Cohort Study. CLS conducts research using the birth cohort study data, with a special interest in family life and parenting, family economics, youth life course transitions and basic skills.

The views expressed in this work are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of CLS, the IOE or the ESRC. All errors and omissions remain those of the authors.

This document is available in alternative formats.

Please contact the Centre for Longitudinal Studies.

tel: +44 (0)20 7612 6875

email: <a href="mailto:clsfeedback@ioe.ac.uk">clsfeedback@ioe.ac.uk</a>

## **Contents**

Introduction	2
Linked geographical data	2
Acquiring geographical data for the cohort studies	3
References	4
Appendix 1: 1971 ACORN classification	5
ACORN Neighbourhood Type 1971	5
ACORN Groups	6
Appendix 2: Constituency type (based on 1971 data)	7
Constituency types	7
Constituency families	8
Appendix 3: 1971 Census counts	9
Appendix 4: 1981 ACORN classification	10
ACORN Neighourhood Type 1981	10
ACORN Groups 1981	11
Appendix 5: 1981 Census counts	12
Age, sex & marital status	12
Country of birth & sex	13
Economic position, sex & marital status	13
Employment status, sex & marital status	14
Economic activity, age, sex & marital status	14
Household amenities & persons per room	16
Household tenure	17
Rooms in households	17
Persons aged 0-15 in households	17
Sex & marital status	17
Household type	17
Socio-economic group (10% sample)	18
Age & industry of employment (10% sample)	18
Age & industry of employment (10% sample)	19

#### Introduction

- 1. This document outlines information available on the characteristics of the areas in which members of the National Child Development Study (NCDS) were living at the time of selected surveys and which might be used for the study of, for example, the links between area social and economic conditions and individual social, economic and health outcomes. Appendices provide more details of the available area information.
- 2. NCDS is one of three cohort studies that are the responsibility of the Centre for Longitudinal Studies, an ESRC Resource Centre (<a href="http://www.cls.ioe.ac.uk">http://www.cls.ioe.ac.uk</a>). The cohort studies follow groups of individuals who were born at one particular time, throughout their lives, and have involved multiple surveys, collecting information on, for example, education and employment, family and parenting, physical and mental health, and social attitudes. The focus of NCDS is on those living in Great Britain who were born in one week in 1958. To date, NCDS surveys have been undertaken at: birth and 7, 11, 16, 23, 33, 42, 46 and 50 years of age. A Biomedical Survey was undertaken at age 44-45 and other quantitative/qualitative sub-sample studies have been undertaken of those in particular circumstances/with specific health conditions.

#### Linked geographical data

- 3. Details of the addresses of members of the NCDS cohort were gathered during each of the follow-ups noted above and a have been used to provide information on location for further details see: <u>Geographical Data and the CLS Cohort Studies</u>. This information on the whereabouts of each individual can also be used to link information from other sources on the characteristics of the local area. For NCDS, the only linked data on area characteristics currently available relates to the surveys undertaken in 1974 (cohort age=16-years) and 1981 (cohort age=23- years).
- 4. Following the completion of the main 1981 survey, additional data were obtained which summarise the characteristics of the area in which each cohort member was living, both at the time of the 1981 survey and at the time of the 1974 survey. The address of each member of the NCDS cohort who participated in the 1981 survey was postcoded, as well as the address at the time of the previous follow-up in 1974, (as reported during the 1981 survey). The postcodes were then used to access enumeration district, ward, constituency, local authority, and other information from the Small Area Statistics (SAS) data from the 1971 and 1981 Census held by CACI International (1971 and 1981 Census) and the ESRC Data Archive (1981 Census). The linked data comprise the following:

#### Area data based on the 1971 Census

This provides for each respondent, both at 16 (1974 address) and 23 (1981 address), the following:

• **Location codes** - postcode, OPCS enumeration district, OPCS Census district, ward, constituency, pre-1974 district, post-1974 district, pre-1974 county, post-1974 county, standard region. See above.

- ACORN type at enumeration district level a classification of OPCS enumeration districts into 36 residential neighbourhood types. The classification is based on 40 census variable covering demographic structure, household composition, housing, socio-economic structure and residents' employment characteristics. These ACORN neighbourhood types can be classified into 11 ACORN groups. (Webber and Craig 1978, Webber 1979). See Appendix 1.
- **Constituency type** a classification of the 623 constituencies using the same 40 census variables which are the basis of ACORN. The classification is, however, different. Each constituency is allocated to one of 30 groups which can in turn be combined into 6 larger groupings. (Webber, 1978). See Appendix 2.
- Census ratios these 19 ratios of 1971 Census counts, taken from the Small Area Statistics, provide summary area data descriptive of different aspects of the socio-economic structure, employment characteristics and housing environment for each respondent. They are recorded for both 1971 Census enumeration district (the smallest unit for which census statistics are available with an average population of about 460); and pre-1974 local authority. See Appendix 3.

#### Area data based on the 1981 Census

This provides for each respondent, and for the 1981 address only:

- Location codes postcode, ward, district, county, standard region. See above.
- ACORN type at ward level a classification of residential neighbourhoods into 38 types based on 41 variables from the 1981 Census encompassing demographic, housing and employment characteristics. The 38 neighbourhood types can be aggregated to give 11 neighbourhood groups (CACI 1983). See Appendix 4.
- Census counts 331 counts taken from the 1981 Census Small Area Statistics
  relating to demographic, socio-economic, employment and housing characteristics
  which permit the derivation of summary measures describing different aspects of
  the area in which the respondent lives. They are recorded at the ward level only.
  See Appendix 5
- 5 Further details of the available area information are provided in the appendices.

## Acquiring geographical data for the cohort studies

- 6. Most available CLS cohort study data can be accessed through the Economic and Social Data Service (ESDS) at the University of Essex (<a href="http://www.essex.ac.uk/">http://www.essex.ac.uk/</a>). Under the standard ESDS End User Licence, this includes region variables. More detailed data on location and area characteristics are available:
  - Under an ESDS 'Special Licence' <a href="http://www.essex.ac.uk/">http://www.essex.ac.uk/</a>
  - Via the Secure Data Service <a href="http://securedata.data-archive.ac.uk/">http://securedata.data-archive.ac.uk/</a>
  - Via CLS http://www.cls.ioe.ac.uk/
- 7. For further information, you can also contact CLS via: <a href="mailto:clsfeedback@ioe.ac.uk">clsfeedback@ioe.ac.uk</a>

#### References

- CACI (1983) 1981 ACORN Classification, CACI, London
- Webber, R. (1978) Parliamentary constituencies: a socio-economic classification. *OPCS Occasional Paper* 13
- Webber, R. (1979) Census enumeration districts: a socio-economic classification. *OPCS Occasional Paper* 14
- Webber, R. and Craig, J. (1978) Socio-economic classification of local authority areas. OPCS Studies on Medical and Population Subjects No. 35

### Appendix 1: 1971 ACORN classification

The 1971 ACORN classification is a classification of OPCS enumeration district into 37 residential neighbourhood types. The classification is based on 40 1971 Census variables covering demographic structure, household composition, housing, socio-economic structure and residents' employment characteristics.

#### **ACORN Neighbourhood Type 1971**

- 1 L.A. and new town housing
- 2 Mixed housing, young families
- 3 Recent council housing
- 4 Modern low cost private housing
- 5 Modern private housing, medium status
- 6 Modern private housing, young families
- 7 Military bases.
- 8 Mixed housing, older areas
- 9 Older terraces with low unemployment
- 10 Mixed development, often in country towns
- 11 Inner areas, low quality terraces
- 12 Low quality housing, declining areas
- 13 Villages with some non-farm employment
- 14 Rural areas with large farms
- 15 Rural areas with own account farmers
- 16 Peripheral low income L.A. estates
- 17 Small L.A. family houses (Scotland & NE)
- 18 Urban L.A. estates, low unemployment

- 19 Terraced/LA houses (often mining areas)
- 20 LA estates with older couples
- 21 Low income LA estates (often high rise)
- 22 LA estates with aged (often high rise)
- 23 LA estates with most stress (Glasgow)
- 24 Tenements and non-permanent dwellings
- 25 Victorian low status (Inner London)
- 26 Multi-let housing with immigrants
- 27 Terraced housing with immigrants.
- 28 Student areas/affluent Inner London
- 29 High income areas with few children
- 30 Modern private housing, high income
- 31 Medium status, inter-war private housing
- 32 Established suburbs of high status
- 33 Established rural commuter villages
- 34 Very high status area
- 35 Areas of elderly people, private housing
- 36 Areas of elderly people, flats and homes
- 37 'Special' or 'small' ED

## **ACORN Groups**

The 37 ACORN neighbourhood types can in turn be classified into just 11 ACORN groups:

ACORN Groups 1971	ACORN Type 1971
A. Modern family housing for manual workers	1-4
B. Modern family housing, higher incomes	5-7
C. Older housing of intermediate status	8-10
D. Very poor quality older terraced housing	11 & 12
E. Rural areas	13-15
F. Urban local authority housing	16-22
G Housing with most overcrowding	23 & 24
H. Low income areas with immigrants	25-27
I. Student and high status non-family areas	28 & 29
J. Traditional high status surburbia	30-34
K. Areas of elderly people	35 & 36

#### For further details see:

Webber, R. (1979) Census enumeration districts: a socio-economic classification. *OPCS Occasional Paper* 14

Webber, R. and Craig, J. (1978) Socio-economic classification of local authority areas. *OPCS Studies on Medical and Population Subjects* No. 35

# Appendix 2: Constituency type (based on 1971 data)

A classification of the 623 constituencies using the same 40 census variables which are the basis of ACORN. The classification is, however, different. Each constituency is allocated to one of 30 groups.

## **Constituency types**

01	Centres of learning				
02	Service centres with single people				
03	Other London suburbs				
04	Very high status areas				
05	Areas extremely dependent upon agriculture				
06	Agricultural areas				
07	Scottish rural areas				
80	Resort and retirement areas				
09	Areas of intermediate status and modern housing				
10	East Midlands/North West small industrial towns				
11	South Midlands growth areas				
12	West Midlands growth areas				
13	Areas of rapid growth				
14	Conurbation mining areas				
15	Mining areas				
16	The Black Country				
17	Steel and chemical towns				
18	South Wales Valleys				
19	Poor urban centres with some non manufacturing functions				
20	Metropolitan inter-war suburbs				
21	Textile areas				
22	Maritime industrial areas				
23	Peripheral conurbation authority housing council estates				
24	Scottish industrial areas				
25	Scottish city constituencies				
26	Clydeside				
27	Low status inner London				
28	Provincial inner areas				
29	High status central London				
30	Multi-occupied inner-London				

# **Constituency families**

The 30 constituency types can, in turn, be combined into 6 larger groupings

- 1 Suburbs and service centres
- 2. Rural areas and seaside resorts
- 3. Growth areas
- 4. Stable industrial areas
- 5. Areas dominated by local authority housing
- 6. Metropolitan inner areas.

#### For further details see:

Webber, R. (1978) Parliamentary constituencies: a socio-economic classification *OPCS Occasional Paper* 13

### **Appendix 3: 1971 Census counts**

Nineteen ratios of 1971 Census counts, taken from the Small Area Statistics, provide summary area data descriptive of different aspects of the socio-economic structure, employment characteristics and housing environment for each respondent. They are recorded for both 1971 Census enumeration district (the smallest unit for which census statistics are available with an average population of about 460); and pre-1974 local authority.

- Sick or seeking work / All economically active people
- Married females working / All females aged 25 64
- · People in Mining or Manufacture / People working
- People in Agriculture / People working
- Professional & Managerial / All economically active people
- Non-manual / All economically active people
- Skilled / All economically active people
- Semi-skilled / All economically active people
- Unskilled / All economically active people
- Aged 0 4 / Total population
- Persons in owner occupied households / All households
- Persons in council tenant households / All households
- Persons in unfurnished tenant households / All households
- Persons in furnished tenant households / All households
- Persons in households / Rooms in households
- Households with all amenities but sharing some / All households
- Households with no inside WC All households
- Households sharing or lacking a bath / All households
- Immigrants / All people

## **Appendix 4: 1981 ACORN classification**

The 1981 ACORN is a classification of OPCS enumeration district into 38 residential neighbourhood types (rather than 36 for 1971 ACORN). The classification is based on 41 1981 Census variables covering demographic structure, household composition, housing, socio-economic structure and residents' employment characteristics.

## **ACORN Neighbourhood Type 1981**

1	Agricultural villages	18	Small council houses, often Scottish
2	Areas of farms and small holdings	19	Low rise estates industrial towns
3	Cheap modern private housing	20	Inter-war council estates, older people
4	Recent private housing, young	21	Council housing for the elderly
	families	22	New council estates in inner cities
5	Modern private housing, older children	23	Overspill estates, high unemployment
6	New detached houses, young families	24	Council estates with overcrowding
7	Military bases	25	Council estates with worst poverty
8	Mixed owner-occupied and council estates	26	Multi-occupied terraces, poor Asians
9	Small town centres and flats above shops	27	Owner-occupied terraces with Asians
		28	Better-off multi-ethnic areas
10	Villages with non-farm employment	29	High status areas, few children
11	Older private housing, skilled workers	30	Multi-let big old houses and flats
12	Unimproved terraces with old people	31	Furnished flats, mostly single people
13	Pre-1914 terraces, low income	32	Inter-war semis, white collar workers
	families	33	Spacious inter-war semis, big gardens
14	Tenements, flats lacking amenities	34	Villages with wealthy older commuters
15	Council estates, well-off older workers	35	Detached houses, exclusive suburbs
16	Recent council estates	36	Private houses, well-off elderly
17	Council estates, well-off young workers	37	Private flats with single pensioners
		38	Unclassified

# **ACORN Groups 1981**

The 37 ACORN neighbourhood types can in turn be classified into just 12 ACORN groups:

ACORN Groups 1981	ACORN Type 1981
A Agricultural areas	1 & 2
B Modern family housing, higher income	2-7
C Older housing of intermediate status	8-11
D Poor quality older terraced housing	12-14
E Better-of council estates	15-18
F Less well-off council estates	19-21
G Poorest council estates	22-25
H Multi-racial areas	26-29
I High status non-family areas	30-32
J Affluent suburban housing	33-36
K Better-off retirement areas	37 & 38
U Unclassified	39

For further details see: CACI (1983) 1981 ACORN Classification, CACI, London

### **Appendix 5: 1981 Census counts**

Some 331 counts taken from the 1981 Census Small Area Statistics relating to demographic, socio-economic, employment and housing characteristics which permit the derivation of summary measures describing different aspects of the area in which the respondent lives. They are recorded at the ward level only.

#### Age, sex & marital status

#### All residents

- All ages total persons
- Residents aged 0-4 years Total persons
- Residents aged 5-9 Total persons
- Residents aged 10-14 Total persons
- Residents aged 15 Total persons
- Residents aged 16-19 Total persons
- Residents aged 16-19 Females, SWD
- Residents aged 16-19 Females, Married
- Residents aged 20-24 Total persons
- Residents aged 20-24 Females, SWD
- Residents aged 20-24 Females, Married
- Residents aged 25-29 Total persons
- Residents aged 25-29 Females, SWD
- Residents aged 25-29 Females, Married
- Residents aged 30-34 Total persons
- Residents aged 30-34 Females, SWD
- Residents aged 30-34 Females, Married
- Residents aged 35-39 Total persons
- Residents aged 35-39 Females, SWD

- Residents aged 35-39 Females, Married
- Residents aged 40-44 Total persons
- Residents aged 40-44 Females, SWD
- Residents aged 40-44 Females, Married
- Residents aged 45-49 Total persons
- Residents aged 45-49 Females, SWD
- Residents aged 45-49 Females, Married
- Residents aged 50-54 Total persons
- Residents aged 50-54 Females, SWD
- Residents aged 50-54 Females, Married
- Residents aged 55-59 Total persons
- Residents aged 55-59 Females, SWD
- Residents aged 55-59 Females, Married
- Residents aged 60-64 Total persons
- Residents aged 60-64 Females, SWD
- Residents aged 60-64 Females, Married
- Residents aged 65-69 Total persons
- Residents aged 70-74 Total persons
- Residents aged 75-79 Total persons
- Residents aged 80-84 Total persons
- Residents aged 85 or more Total persons

#### Country of birth & sex

#### All residents

- Total Males
- Total Females
- Residents born in England Males
- Residents born in England Females
- Residents born in Scotland Males
- Residents born in Scotland Females
- Residents born in Wales Males
- Residents born in Wales Females
- Residents born in rest of UK Males
- Residents born in rest of UK Females
- Residents born in Irish Republic Males
- Residents born in Irish Republic Females
- Residents born in Old Commonwealth
   Males
- Residents born in Old Commonwealth
   Females
- Born in New Commonwealth Males
- Born in New Commonwealth Females
- Born in the New Commonwealth: East Africa-Males
- Born in the New Commonwealth: East Africa-Females
- Born in the New Commonwealth: remainder of Africa - Males
- Born in the New Commonwealth: remainder of Africa - Females
- Born in the New Commonwealth: Caribbean - Males
- Born in the New Commonwealth: Caribbean - Females
- Born in the New Commonwealth: India
   Males
- Born in the New Commonwealth: India
   Females
- Born in the New Commonwealth: -Bangladesh - Males

- Born in the New Commonwealth: -Bangladesh - Females
- Born in the New Commonwealth: Far East - Males
- Born in the New Commonwealth: Far East - Females
- Born in the New Commonwealth: Mediterranean - Males
- Born in the New Commonwealth:
   Mediterranean Females
- Born in the remainder of the New Commonwealth - Males
- Born in the remainder of the New Commonwealth - Females
- Born in Pakistan Males
- Born in Pakistan Females
- Born in other Countries of the Economic Community - Males
- Born in other Countries of the Economic Community - Females
- Born in other Countries of Europe -Male
- Born in other Countries of Europe -Females
- Born in Countries in the rest of the world Males
- Born in Countries in the rest of the world Females

# Economic position, sex & marital status

All residents aged 16 or over

- Economically active Total persons
- Economically active Males, SWD
- Economically active Males, Married
- Economically active Females
- Economically active Females, SWD
- Economically active-Females, Married
- Seeking work Total persons
- Seeking work Males, SWD

- Seeking work Males, Married
- Seeking work Females
- Seeking work Females, SWD
- Seeking work Females, Married
- Temporarily sick - Total persons
- Temporarily sick Males, SWD
- Temporarily sick Males, Married
- Temporarily sick Females, SWD
- Temporarily sick Females, Married

# Employment status, sex & marital status

All residents aged 16 or over, in employment

- All in employment Males
- All in employment Females, SWD
- All in employment Females, Married
- Apprentices & trainees Males
- Apprentices & trainees-Females, SWD
- Apprentices & trainees Females, Married
- All employees Females, SWD
- All employees Females, Married
- All employees working part-time -Females, SWD
- All employees working part-time -Females, Married

# Economic activity, age, sex & marital status

All economically active residents

- Aged 20-24 Self-employed
- Aged 16-19 Total Persons
- Aged 16-19 Males, economically active

- Aged 16-19 Females economically active, SWD
- Aged 16-19 Females: economically active, Married
- Aged 20-24 Total persons economically active
- Aged 20-24 Males: economically active
- Aged 20-24 Females: economically active, SWD
- Aged 20-24 Females: economically active, Married
- Aged 25-29 Total persons economically active
- Aged 25-29 Males: economically active
- Aged 25-29 Females: economically active, SWD
- Aged 25-29 Females: economically active, Married
- Aged 30-34 Total persons economically active
- Aged 30-34 Males: economically active
- Aged 30-34 Females: economically active, SWD
- Aged 30-34 Females: economically active, Married
- Aged 35-39 Total persons economically active
- Aged 35-39 Males: economically active
- Aged 35-39 Females: economically active, SWD
- Aged 35-39 Females: economically active, Married
- Aged 40-44 Total persons economically active
- Aged 40-44 Males: economically active

- Aged 40-44 Females: economically active, SWD
- Aged 40-44 Females: economically active, Married
- Aged 45-49 Total persons economically active
- Aged 45-49 Males: economically active
- Aged 45-49 Females: economically active, SWD
- Aged 45-49 Females: economically active, Married
- Aged 50-54 Total persons economically active
- Aged 50-54 Males: economically active
- Aged 50-54 Females: economically active, SWD
- Aged 50-54 Females: economically active, Married
- Aged 55-59 Total persons economically active
- Aged 55-59 Males: economically active
- Aged 55-59 Females: economically active, SWD
- Aged 55-59 Females: economically active, Married
- Aged 60-64 Total persons economically active
- Aged 60-64 Males: economically active
- Aged 16-19 In full-time employment:
   Males
- Aged 16-19 In full-time employment: Females. SWD
- Aged 16-19 In full-time employment: Females, Married
- Aged 20-24 In full-time employment: Males

- Aged 20-24 In full-time employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 20-24 In full-time employment: Females, Married
- Aged 25-29 In full-time employment:
   Males
- Aged 25-29 In full-time employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 25-29 In full-time employment: Females, Married
- Aged 30-34 In full-time employment:
   Males
- Aged 30-34 In full-time employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 30-34 In full-time employment: Females, Married
- Aged 35-39 In full-time employment:
   Males
- Aged 35-39 In full-time employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 35-39 In full-time employment: Females, Married
- Aged 40-44 In full-time employment:
   Males
- Aged 40-44 In full-time employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 40-44 In full-time employment: Females, Married
- Aged 45-49 In full-time employment:
   Males
- Aged 45-49 In full-time employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 45-49 In full-time employment: Females, Married
- Aged 50-54 In full-time employment:
   Males
- Aged 50-54 In full-time employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 50-54 In full-time employment:
   Females, Married

- Aged 55-59 In full-time employment:
   Males
- Aged 55-59 In full-time employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 55-59 In full-time employment: Females, Married
- Aged 60-64 In full-time employment:
   Males
- Aged 16-19 Not in employment:
   Males
- Aged 16-19 Not in employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 16-19 Not in employment: Females. Married
- Aged 20-24 Not in employment: Males
- Aged 20-24 Not in employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 20-24 Not in employment: Females, Married
- Aged 25-29 Not in employment: Males
- Aged 25-29 Not in employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 25-29 Not in employment: Females, Married
- Aged 30-34 Not in employment: Males
- Aged 30-34 Not in employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 30-34 Not in employment: Females, Married
- Aged 35-39 Not in employment: Males
- Aged 35-39 Not in employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 35-39 Not in employment: Females, Married
- Aged 40-44 Not in employment:
   Males

- Aged 40-44 Not in employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 40-44 Not in employment: Females, Married
- Aged 45-49 Not in employment:
   Males
- Aged 45-49 Not in employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 45-49 Not in employment: Females, Married
- Aged 50-54 Not in employment: Males
- Aged 50-54 Not in employment: Females. SWD
- Aged 50-54 Not in employment: Females, Married
- Aged 55-59 Not in employment: Males
- Aged 55-59 Not in employment: Females, SWD
- Aged 55-59 Not in employment: Females, Married
- Aged 60-64 Not in employment: Males

# Household amenities & persons per room

Private households with residents

- All households
- All households With exclusive use of bath and inside WC
- All households Lacking a bath
- All households-Lacking an inside WC
- All households-Sharing an inside WC
- All households With more than 1.5 persons per room
- All households With more than 1 and less than 1.5 persons per room

#### Household tenure

#### Private households with residents

- Total households
- Households Tenure: Owner occupied
- Households Tenure: Council, etc
- Households Tenure: Housing Associations
- Households Tenure: Rented with business
- Households Tenure: By virtue of employment
- Households Tenure: Other rented, unfurnished
- Households Tenure: Other rented, furnished

#### Rooms in households

#### Private households with residents

- All households With 1 room
- All households With 2 rooms
- All households With 3 rooms
- All households With 4 rooms
- All households With 5 rooms
- All households With 6 rooms
- All households With 7 or more rooms
- All households With rooms
- All households With rooms Total rooms
- All households With rooms Total persons

#### Persons aged 0-15 in households

Private households with residents aged 16 or over

- Total households
- Total households with 0 persons aged 0-15
- Total households with 1 person aged 0-15
- Total households with 2 persons aged 0-15
- Total households with 3 persons aged 0-15
- Total households with 4 or more persons aged 0-15

#### Sex & marital status

Residents in private households

- All aged 16 or over
- All aged 16 or over-Males, Married
- All aged 16 or over Males, Separated
- All aged 16 or over Males, Widowed or Divorced
- All aged 16 or over Females, Married
- All aged 16 or over Females, Separated
- All aged 16 or over Females, Widowed or Divorced

#### Household type

Private households with residents

- Total households
- Household: 1 pensioner 0 aged 0-15
- Household: 1 adult under pensionable age - 0 aged 0-15
- Household: 1 adult any age 1 or more persons aged 0-15

- Household: Married male with married female - 0 aged 0-15
- Household: Married male with married female - 1 or more persons aged 0-15
- Household: 3 or more married males with married females - 0 aged 0-15
- Household: 3 or more married males with married females - 1 or more persons aged 0-15
- 2 or more other adults 0 aged 0-15
- 2 or more other adults 1 or more persons aged 0-15

# Socio-economic group (10% sample)

Residents aged 16 or over in employment

- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 1 -Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 2 -Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 3 -Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 4 -Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 5.1
   Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 5.2
   Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 6 -Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 7 -Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 8 -Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 9 -Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 10
   Total in employment

- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 11
   Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 12
   Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 13
   Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 14
   Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 15
   Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 16
   Total in employment
- Socio-economic group (- SEG) 17
   Total in employment
- Socio-economic groups (- SEG) 1-17
   Total in employment

# Age & industry of employment (10% sample)

Residents aged 16 or over in employment

- Males aged 16 or over Total in employment
- Males aged 16 or over Industry: Agriculture
- Males aged 16 or over Industry: Energy and Water
- Males aged 16 or over Industry: -Manufacturing
- Males aged 16 or over Industry: Construction
- Males aged 16 or over Industry: Distribution and Catering
- Males aged 16 or over Industry: Transport
- Males aged 16 or over Industry: Other Services
- Males aged 16-29 Total in employment

- Males aged 16-29 Industry: Agriculture
- Males aged 16-29 Industry: Energy and Water
- Males aged 16-29 Industry: -Manufacturing
- Males aged 16-29 Industry: Construction
- Males aged 16-29 Industry:
   Distribution and Catering
- Males aged 16-29 Industry: Transport
- Males aged 16-29 Industry: Other Services
- Males aged 30-44 Total in employment
- Males aged 30-44 Industry: Agriculture
- Males aged 30-44 Industry: Energy and Water
- Males aged 30-44 Industry: -Manufacturing
- Males aged 30-44 Industry: Construction
- Males aged 30-44 Industry: Distribution and Catering
- Males aged 30-44 Industry: Transport
- Males aged 30-44 Industry: Other Services
- Males aged 45-64 Total in employment
- Males aged 45-64 Industry: Agriculture
- Males aged 45-64 Industry: Energy and Water
- Males aged 45-64 Industry: -Manufacturing
- Males aged 45-64 Industry: Construction

- Males aged 45-64 Industry:
   Distribution and Catering
- Males aged 45-64 Industry: Transport
- Males aged 45-64 Industry: Other Services

# Age & industry of employment (10% sample)

Residents aged 16 or over in employment

- Females aged 16 or over Total in employment
- Females aged 16 or over Industry: Agriculture
- Females aged 16 or over Industry: Energy and Water
- Females aged 16 or over Industry:
   Manufacturing
- Females aged 16 or over Industry: Construction
- Females aged 16 or over Industry: Distribution and Catering
- Females aged 16 or over Industry: Transport
- Females aged 16 or over Industry: Other Services
- Females aged 16-29 Total in employment
- Females aged 16-29 Industry: Agriculture
- Females aged 16-29 Industry: Energy and Water
- Females aged 16-29 Industry: Manufacturing
- Females aged 16-29 Industry:
   Construction
- Females aged 16-29 Industry:
   Distribution and Catering

- Females aged 16-29 Industry: Transport
- Females aged 16-29 Industry: Other Services
- Females aged 30-44 Total in employment
- Females aged 30-44 Industry: Agriculture
- Females aged 30-44 Industry: Energy and Water
- Females aged 30-44 Industry: Manufacturing
- Females aged 30-44 Industry: Construction
- Females aged 30-44 Industry: Distribution and Catering
- Females aged 30-44 Industry: Transport

- Females aged 30-44 Industry: Other Services
- Females aged 45-59 Total in employment
- Females aged 45-59 Industry: Agriculture
- Females aged 45-59 Industry: Energy and Water
- Females aged 45-59 Industry: Manufacturing
- Females aged 45-59 Industry: Construction
- Females aged 45-59 Industry:
   Distribution and Catering
- Females aged 45-59 Industry: Transport
- Females aged 45-59 Industry: Other Services

# Centre for Longitudinal Studies

Institute of Education 20 Bedford Way London WC1H 0AL

Tel: 020 7612 6860 Fax: 020 7612 6880 Email cls@ioe.ac.uk Web www.cls.ioe.ac.uk